AD-765 447

FORMATION OF PYROPHORIC FRAGMEN'TS

Warren W. Hillstrom

Ballistic Research Laboratories Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland

June 1973

A MARKEN AND A STATISTICS AND A STATISTICS

DISTRIBUTED BY:

NHAG

National Technical Information Service U. S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 5285 Port Royal Road, Springfield Va. 22151







AD

4 :

ANALY STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE P

MEMORANDUM REPORT NO. 2306 (Supersedes IMR No. 46)

FORMATION OF PYROPHORIC FRAGMENTS

by

Warren W. Hillstrom

June 1973

Approved for public release; distribution unlimited.

Peproduced by NATIONAL TECHNICAL INFORMATION SERVICE US Department of Commerce Springer eld va. 22131

USA BALLISTIC RESEARCH LABORATORIES ABERDEEN PROVING GROUND, MARYLAND

	NT COMTROL DATA -	R&D	alan mendikan dikan dan bisakan kerenci (Companya Kalandar Karanga)		
(Security classification of title, body of abernet or	nd inducting annotation most i	s entwood when the	overall report to classified)		
ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (Carponute author) HISA Rellistic December Inhoraturi	• *	Unclas	SIFICO		
Aberdeen Proving Ground Md. 21005	5 5	Pb. GROUP	24. GROUP		
REPORT TITLE	an a	arren ar egyandar te sinne i senenen daharan dar	ĸĸĸĸĸĸĸĸĸĸĸĸŎĬĊĸĸĸĸŢĊĸĸĸĸĊĸĊĸĸŎŎŎŗŎŎŎŎŎŎĊĬĊŢĊĸĊĸĸĬĸţĸŢĬĸĸĊĸĬŎĬŎĬŎŎŎŎŎŎŎŎŎŎŎ		
Formation of Pyrophoric Fragment	ts				
DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive deter RRI Report June 1971 - December 197) 12	ana tanàna mandritry amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fisiana amin'ny fi			
AUTHOR(B) (First name, middle initial, last same)		ويوافقانك فكر معتبده اعتماده المتعاقب	والمراجع والمراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحاف		
Warren W. Hillstrom					
REFORT DATE	78. T. TAL NO.	OF PAGES	75. NO. OF REFS		
JUNE 1973			1 11		
- CONTRACT OR GRANT NO. N/A	M. ORIGINATO	R'S REPORT NUM	* E M (#)		
PROIXCT NO. RDT&E ITO61102A33E	BRL M	EMORANDUM R	SPORT NO. 2306		
		ORT NOISI (ANY O	Ses :		
DIATRIBUTION STATEMENT	<u></u>		ورواري والمتناوي والمواري بالكار والمراجع والكريمية والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع		
This document has been approved for unlimited.	public release a	nd sale; its	distribution is		
SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	12. SPUNDORIN	G MILITARY ACTI	ALLA		
Supercedes IMR No.46	US Army	Materiel Co	mmand		
	SOUL EIS	Senhower Ave	пие а 2304		
ABSTRACT		ira, virgint			
An empirical correlation was of properties: (1) the standard free e metal oxide and (2) the metal oxide	developed to predi energy of formatic e volume compared	ict pyrophor on per oxyge with metal	ic sparking from two n atom in the volume.		
The ignition of pyrophoric met sizes resulting in very large surfa- to study large pyrophoric pellets a laboratory. This paper describes a misch werel, zirconium, and titanic threshold conditions for initiation criterion was defined as the Lower	tals is usually st ace effects. A si and the formation the test and repor um. Each of the m t of pyrophoric sp Glow Temperature.	udied with mple impact of free fly rts test res metals exhib parking. An	very small particle test was developed ing fragments in the ults for cerium, ited different experimental		
िल्स्स्टीखः 0 () म. ते - क्षाम	of Alustrations in terms	₩2 •			

Unclassified

Security Classification

KIIV WORLS	and an	LIN	K A	LiN	K Ð	LIN	LINKC	
a and a second	المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع	ROLE	w۳	ROLE	WT	ROLE	W 7	
					}]		
Pyrophoric Metals]			
Incendiaries					1			
Metal combustion							Ì	
Reactive fragments					}			
m sch metal						}	1	
zireonium								
titanium								
							l	
				Ì				
				i I				
			[ļ		
			ł					
		Ì	i		1	ł		
		[[1		
			1					
	Ì		}		}	ļ		
					1			
		l	Į					
						Í		
					[{		
						1		
					i			
					1			
		1		ļ				
			Í	ł		Į		
					1			
			-			}		
						l		
]				
energy of the second	an a		and the second	ananan ta sana ta		and the static state of the sta	P"GANNADO!	
		Unclas	sified					
	11		Au curity		at low		-	
	the second se							

BALLISTIC RESEARCH LABORATORIES

MEMORANDUM REPORT NO. 2306

(Supersedes IMK No. 46)

JUNE 1973

FORMATION OF PYROPHORIC FRAGMENTS

Warren W. Hillstrom

Terminal Bailistics Laboratory

Approved for public release; discribution unlimited.

RDT&E Project No. 1T061102A33E

ABERDEEN PROVING GROUPP, MARYLAND

-1-

BALLISTIC RESEARCH LABORATORIES

MEMORANDUM REPORT NO. 2306

WHillstrom/mba/2632 Aberdeen Proving Ground, Md. June 1973

FORMATION OF PYROPHORIC FRAGMENTS

ABSTRACT

An empirical correlation was developed to predict pyrophoric sparking from two properties: (1) the standard free energy of formation per oxygen atom in the metal oxide and (2) the metal oxide volume compared with metal volume.

The ignition of pyrophoric metals is usually studied with very small particle sizes resulting in very large surface effects. A simple impact test was developed to study large pyrophoric pellets and the formation of free flying fragments in the laboratory. This paper describes the test and reports test results for cerium, misch metal, zirconium, and titanium. Each of the metals exhibited different threshold conditions for initiation of pyrophoric sparking. An experimental criterion was defined as the Lower Glow Temperature.

3

Preceding page blank

TABLE OF CONTENTS

 $e_{2,2} \in e_{2} e_{2} \in \mathbb{R}^{3}$

Page

	ABSTRACT	3
	LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS	7
	LIST OF TABLES	9
Ι.	INTRODUCTION	11
II.	EMPIRICAL TREATMENT OF PROPERTIES	13
III.	EXPERIMENTAL	19
IV.	METAL TEMPERATURE EFFECTS	19
	A. Misch Metal and Cerium	19
	B. Zirconium	20
	C. Titanium	24
	D. Other Metals	24
	E. Glow Propagation	28
V.	GENERATION OF PYROPHORIC FRAGMENTS	28
VI.	CONCLUSIONS	34
	REFERENCES	35
	DISTRIBUTION LIST	37

Preceding page blank

このである。そのこの大学がないない。 しんない ないない かんない かんしたい かんしょう しんかい しんしょう しんかい しんしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう

LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS

の間になっている。

Figure		Page
1.	Free Energy of Formation vs Oxide Expansion	15
2.	75M2 Misch Metal Temperature vs Glow Time	21
3.	95M Misch Metal Temperature vs Glow Time	22
4.	Effect of Zirconium Weight on Glow Time	23
5.	Effect of Temperature on Zirconium Glow Time	25
6.	Effect of Titanium Weight on Glow Time, 920°C	26
7.	Effect of Titanium Weight on Glow Time, 370°C	27
8.	Misch Metal Expansion	29
9.	prop Weight Impact Apparatus	30
10.	Drop Weight Impact Apparatus Dimensions	31
11.	Effect of Impact on Spark Formation	32

7

Preceding page blank

LIST OF TABLES

Table		Page
Ι.	Properties of Pyrophoric Metals	12
II.	Effect of Particle Size on Surface Area	12
III.	Empirical Pyrophoricity Determination	17

ņ

anterstand and the second descention of the second second

Bear Welminchester ...

Preceding page blank

an in an analysis and the states of the second second

1. INTRODUCTION

Pyrophoric materials are defined by Webster as those that (1) ignite spontaneously and/or (2) emit sparks when scratched or struck. Many materials ignite spontaneously in oxidizing atmospheres as a result of their extreme reactivity. Examples of such materials are metal hydrides and alkyls such as lithium hydride and trimethyl aluminum. Dusts of very small diameter metal particles may also ignite when exposed to air at room temperature. The ignition temperatures of these dusts usually vary with particle size and surface history.^{1*,2,3}

In this exploratory study, we are concerned primarily with the second definition where bulk metal pieces spark profusely when ground, abraded, impacted, or otherwise subjected to mechanical shock. Pyrophoric sparking is a unique, little understood property of a few metals. It is the purpose of this work to investigate the nature of pyrophoricity and furnish a method for distinguishing between materials that are pyrophoric and others that are not. Both empirical correlations of the available physical properties of the elements and an experimental test of pyrophoric sparking were employed toward this end.

Cerium, zirconium and uranium are most commonly described as pyrophoric metals in terms of the above definition. Some of the chemical and physical properties of these metals are shown in Table I. Cerium is the major constituent of misch metal which is used in the manufacture of lighter flints. The ease of sparking of lighter flints is well known. The character of the sparks from present day lighter flints is somewhat different from the old flint and steel sparks. The former ignite hydrocarbon fuel-air mixtures while the old flint and steel sparks could only ignite extremely flammable material such as tinder or charred cloth. Sparks from pyrophoric materials sometimes multiply in dramatic cascades.

As shown in Table I, uranium has a relatively low spontaneous ignition temperature. When such temperatures are reported, they have *Beferences are listed on page 35.*

Preceding page biank

been measured for powders. The results are seen to vary greatly with particle size, surface oxidation, and surface history, such as annealing and the presence or lack of chemically or physically absorbed films.⁹

Atomic Number ⁴ Electronic Structures ⁵	$\frac{Zr}{40}$ $4d^2 5s^2$	$\frac{Ce}{58}$ 4f ¹ 5d ¹ 6s ²	$\frac{U}{92}$ 5f ³ 6d ¹ 7s ²
Specific Gravity (20°C)	6.506	6.771	18.95
M.P., °C ⁴	1852	798	1132
B.P., °C ⁴	4377	3257	3818
Heat of Comb., K cal/g ⁶	2.8	1.9	1.097
Heat of Comb., K cal/cm ³⁶	18	13	20.47
Spontaneous Ignitior. Temp erature, °C⁸	150	150-189	20

Table I. Properties of Pymphoric Metals

The surface area available for reaction is increased greatly by subdivision of a given mass of material. For example, the surface area on one gram of a material with a density of 2.30 is shown in Table II for subdivision in c bes with an edge length, ℓ .

<u>\$, cm</u>	A, cm^2/g
10 ⁻¹	26.1
10^{-3}	261.0
10 ⁻⁵	261 _x 000
10 ⁻⁶	2,610,000
0-7	26,100,000

Table II. Effect of Particle Size on Surface Area¹¹

Normally, high surface area to mass ratios greatly magnify solid surface effects in reactions with gases. Thus, experiments involving ignition of powders require careful attention to experimental conditions and

metal surface history for meaningful, consistant results.

The electronic structure of these pyrophosic metals discusse two common characteristics. They are tradition metals and (1) three have largely unfilled dishells. Cerium has $5a^{1}$; uradium has $5a^{1}$ and zirconium has $4d^{2}$. Thus, large numbers of orbitals are available for coordination and reaction. This is is contrast to the comparatively stable transition metal, tungston, which has $5d^{4}$.

Up to now, field tests have been used widely to evaluate the effectiveness of munitions containing pyrophoric metals against a variety of combustible fuel targets. However, many loosely controlled factors significantly affect these tests, often liading to inconsistent and questionable results. Some of these variable factors include temperature, contamination, if evaporation of the fuel along with the general target geometry and environment. Alequate control of ill of these is tors as a difficult and continuing to k.

On the other hand, a laboratory test institle advantage of generally better controlled test conditions, lower sampower and cost requirements, and quick response. It would be mean useful as a screening test to determine the sperking ability of differing matterings. The test could then furnish a means to study the commation of pyrophoric fragments and their efficiency as an ignitude source. Sield tests should all o be carried out to issues the efficiency of material round efficiency in the screening test.

II. EMPIRICAL TRAIMENT OF PROPE TIES.

Since an intuitive examination of metal sporking indicates that some physical and chemical properties with correlate with the source of pyrophoricity, the known properties of some pyrophoric metals work compared with those of non-pyrophoric metals. We observe received with was found between thermal conductivity and pyrophosically of the properties that do correlate are (1) the reactivity of the metal with occgen of accand (2) oxide volume compared with metal volume. The structure free energy of formation per oxygen arow in the metal oxide is a parameter indicating relative metal reactivity with oxygen. It is also a good indicator of the heat available from reaction of the metal with oxygen.

The other parameter of interest is oxide expansion. The violent expansion of mete' during its oxidation may be one cause of the explosive cascuding, or "popcorning," observed with pyrophoric sparks. To explore this concept the ratios of the metal oxide and metal specific volumes were calculated by means of the following formula:



where

 F_{0} = formula weight of oxide/atom of metal D_{m} = metal density A_{m} = atomic weight of the metal D_{0} = metal oxide density.

For example, the ratio of oxide to metal for titanium is

 $\frac{(73.9)}{(47.9)} \frac{(4.50)}{(4.26)} = 1.76$

Comparison of this ratio with those for other metals gives a relative order of magnitude for the expansion of the reacting material. A correlation of this ratio and the free energy of formation of the oxide for 15 elements is shown in Figure 1.

It can be seen that these measures of reactivity and oxide expansion allow a general separation of known pyrophoric and nonpyrophoric elements. Branum, corrum and girconium have both relatively high reactivity and oxide volume ratio. Algonium is an exception. Its dust ignites easily,



but the pute metal is apparently too soft to spark appreciably when abraded. Thus, if other anomalies are found some additional metal property such as lardness may have to be considered to estimate pyrophoricity. Thoride clso has relatively high reactivity and a high oxide volume ratio. It has been called pyrophoric , but its sparking ability should be investigated further in the tests described in this report.

From this correlation, empirical criteria for pyrophoricity were tentatively established to determine promising pyrophoric materials. The threshold for negative standard free energy of formation was set at 100 since titanium is 101.9 kg cal/mole/o atom. Titanium in experiments to be described later shows a tendency to spark profusely upon impact. The other parameter of interest in the above correlation is the ratio of specific volumes of oxide/metal. From the sharp division of pyrophoric and non-pyrophoric in the correlation, a specific volume ratio of 1.0 was selected as the threshold. It appears necessary for a metal to have values above both threshold criteria in order to be pyrophoric.

Sufficient data were available for 60 elements to estimate their pyrophoricity according to these criteria. Some 14 elements possess properties that suggest pyrophoric behavior. The results are summarized in Table III. The elements that fit this pyrophoricity criteria are: aluminum, peryllium, cerium, hafnium, lanthanum, neodymium, plutonium, praseodymium, samarium, thorium, titanium, uranium, yttrium, and zirconium. These materials should be tested further to confirm their pyrophoric cendencies. Alloys of pyrophoric with other pyrophoric and pyrophoric with non-pyrophoric materials could also be considered. For example, both ZrSn and FeCe alloys spark profusely under impact.

Oxide	ΔF _f υ Kg Cal/mole/o	Vol. Oxide Vol. Element	Estimated Pyrophoricity
A1 0	-125.59	1.28	Yes
-2°3 As.0.	- 45.89	2.02	No
5b_0	- 47	1.44	No
2-4 Ban	-126.3	.78	No
Be0	-139.0	2.77	Yes
Bi_O.	- 39.57	1.28	No
2 3 F 0_	- 94.33	3.06	No
3 Ca0	- 53.79	1.21	No
Ca0	-144,4	.83	No
Ce0_	-116*	1.23	Yes
Cs_0	- 75.9*	0.468	No
2 Cr_0_	- 83.6	3.92	No
2 3 Co0	- 51.0	2.10	No
Cu_0	- 34.94	1.70	No
4 Ga ₂ 0,	- 86*	1.350	No
Ge0,	- 64.1*	1.23	No
Au ₀ ,	+ 13.0	-	No
2 3 H£0 ,	-135.7*	1.62	Yes
In.0,	- 74.2*	1.22	No
Ir0,	- 20.1*	8.30	No
Fe,0,	- 59.0	2.06	No
	-153*	1.11	Yes
P50,	- 26.17	1.31	No
Lizô	-142.4*	, 60	No
Mgô	-136.13	0.84	No
Maro ,	- 55.7	2.07	NC
Hgð	- 13.99	1.32	No
NOO ,	~ 53.98	3.25	No
Nd, Ör	- 147.3*	1.12	Yes
NIO	- \$1.7	1.68	No
wb 205		2.74	No

TABLE III Empirical Pyrophoricity Determination

and a subscreee sale

重ねれた。

1000 H

	Empirical Pyrop	horicity Determina	tion (continued)
	∆F _€ ⁰	Vol.Oxide	Estimated
Oxide	Kg Cal/mole/o	Vol.Element	Pyrophoricity
Os0 _A	- 17.6	6.12	No
FJO	- 20.4*	1.51	No
P4010	- 72.0**	1.75	No
$Pu0_2$	-126*	1.96	Yes
Po02	- 23.1		No
K ₂ 0	- 86.4*	0.51	No
Pr_0,	-148.2*	1,12	Yes
RaO	-125*	-	-
Re ₂ 0 ₇	42.5*	4.38	No
Rh ₂ 0'	- 22.8*	2.29	No
Rb ₂ 0 ₂	- 50.9*	0.498	No
Ru0,	~ 26.3*	2.32	No
Se02	- 27.5	1.71	No
Si0 ₂	- 96.2	2.04	No
Ag.0	- 2.59	1.58	No
Na ₂ 0	- 90.0	0.32	No
Sm ₂ ⁻ 0 ₃	- 103	1.06	Yes
Sru	- 133.8	0.69	No
Ta ₂ 0 ₅	- 94.1	2.47	No
TeO2	- 32.3	1.38	No
тı ₂ õ	- 32.5	1.29	No
Th0 ₂	-140.1***	1.36	Yes
Sn0 ₂	- 62.1	1.19	No
Ti0 ₂	-101.9	1.78	Yes
wo ₃	- 60,8	3.40	No
110 ₂	-128	3.10	Yes
V205	- 68.8	3.17	No
Y ₂ 03	-102	1.44	Yes
2n0 7r0-	- /0.05 -122 2	1.63 1 cc	No V-r
*Calculated	from AH_O	1.00	153
**Calculated	from AH _c o in Handbo	ook of Chemistry,N.	Lange, Ed., 9 Ed., 195

TUBPC III	TA	₿	L	E	I	I	I
-----------	----	---	---	---	---	---	---

56.

***Calculated from ΔF_f o in Handbook of Chemistry, N.Iange Ed., 9 Ed., 1956.

III. EXPERIMENTAL

Metal samples were used as obtained from the suppliers. Sponge (irregular, fractured lumps), solid roc, and dust samples of zirconium as Commercial Grade 11 were supplied by Amax Specialty Metals, Inc., Akron, New York. Lengths of 3/16" diameter misch metal rod were purchased from Ronson Metals Corporation, Newark, N.J. Both 75M2 (75% rare earths, 23% iron, 2% magnesium) and 95M (95% rare earths, 5% magnesium) grades were used. A typical analysis of the rare earths in misch metal is 53% cerium,24% lanthanum, 16% neodymium, 5% praseodymium, 2% other rare earths. Pure cerium (99.9%) ingots were purchased from Research Organic/ Inorganic Chemical Corp., Sun Valley, Calif. and carefully machined to the desired shapes. Lump, reagent grade antimony was obtained from Fisher Scientific Co., Pittsburgh, Pa. Pure aluminum and copper rods were obtained locally. Irregular lumps of titanium metal were purchased from Fisher Scientific Company as fused titanium metal, C.P.

IV. METAL TEMPERATURE EFFECTS

A. Misch Metal and Cerium

In order to test the ignition of metal samples larger than dusts, metal samples ranging in weight from a few milligrams to several grams were heated to temperatures at and above their reported "autoignition temperatures." For example, 75M2 misch metal was heated at 200° in air for 3 days without glowing, burning, or sparking. It only corroded or oxidized slower. This is in contrast to its reported autoignition temperature of 150-180°C. When the misch metal was heated at higher temperatures (600-1000°C) in air it glowed bright orange, but still no flames, sparks,or burning were seen. In an argon atmosphere the misch metal did not glow brightly when heated at 830° C. The same piece glowed brightly when subsequently exposed to air. Thus, the glowing apparently results from an exidation reaction. This bright orange glow was necessary for profuse sparks upon impact with drop weights as will be discussed later in this report. An iron nut in the furnace served as a reference for the appearance of glowing although the pyrophoric glowing was bright enough itself to be easily distinguished from normal radiation.

Bulk pieces above the Lower Glow Temperature begin to glow at lengths of time dependent on the furnace temperature. The length of time was measured from the beginning of heating until the appearance of the bright orange glow. Figure 2 shows the time to glow as a function of furnance temperature. Small rods of 75M2 misch metal, 3/16" diameter by 1/2"length, were set in a combustion boat in the hot furnance and the time measured for the onset of a bright orange glow. At temperatures below about 400° C no bright orange glow appeared. This limiting temperature is the Lower Glow Temperature. Bulk pieces do not glow at temperatures below the Lower Glow Temperature.

The time to glow for 95M misch metal is shown in Figure 3. Shorter times to the beginning of bright glowing were observed, but the Lower Glow Temperature Limit is about the same as that found for 75M2 within the experimental error.

Pure cerium pellets with the same geometry began to glow faster than 75M2 and 95M. For example, at 600° C it began to glow in only 27 seconds compared with 98 seconds for 75M2 and 50 seconds for 95M.

B. Zirconium

Zirconium sponge was heated similarly, but the time to glow was very dependent on particle size as shown in Figure 4. As might be expected, the smaller particles begin to glow in a much shorter time than larger pieces exposed to the same temperatures. This may be due to heat loss from the metal particle surface to the interior. This would result from heat transfer losses to the interior of the metal particle from the surface. The oxidation appears to proceed in two steps, giving an orange glow first, and then white incandescence for particles ranging from 0.18 g up to a gram. Since the white incandescent state was needed for sparks on impact







(with zirconium no sparks could be initiated by impact during the orange glowing phase) the Lower Glow Temperature was 580^oC.

The time to glow for zirconium sponge as a function of lurnace temperature is shown in Figure 5. Three particles of 0.80 ± 06 g were used in this case. Larger pieces had a much flatter curve with such longer times to glow. Smaller pieces showed little variation in time to glow with furnace temperatures, but were either "glow or no-glow" at temperatures above or below 580° C, respectively.

Pieces of solid zirconium rod in the same weight range showed dissimilar behavior in that they only glowed orange. They did not progress to the white incandescent state after heating at 900° C for periods up to 12 minutes. The reasons for this difference in behavior are not well understood. Further work with different physical forms of zirconium may be needed to clarify their behavior. Void spaces in the sponge may act as insulation and prevent heat loss during rapid oxidation of the metal since the specific gravity of the zirconium sponge used in these experiments was measured to vary from 2.4 to 22.9% lower than the literature value.

C. Titanium

Titanium behaved like zirconium as shown in Figure 6 $(920^{\circ}C)$ and 7 $(870^{\circ}C)$. Samples of sponge titanium proceeded through an orange glow to white incandescence. The pieces did not always proceed to whiteness. At lower temperatures, even after ten minutes heating, no samples would go to whiteness. Since the whiteness was needed for sparks on impact, the Lower Glow Temperature for titanium sponge appears to be $870^{\circ}C$. As with zirconium, solid titanium rod would not go to whiteness after heating at $900^{\circ}C$ for long periods.

D. Other Metals

Some metals that are not predicted to be pyrophoric were also heated. Aluminum only melted when its temperature rose to the melting point $(660^{\circ}C)$ without any sign of glowing, sparking, or burning. Antimony $(m.p.630^{\circ}C)$ behaved similarly. Copper $(m.p. 1083^{\circ}C$ did not glow, spark,







or burn at temperatures up to 900° C.

E. Glow Propagation

The propagation of the glowing was observed with long rods of misch metal. The bright orange glow was "beerved to propagate down 6" lengths of misch metal rod having a $3/16^{11}$ diameter. The rods were initially at 22° C and were held horizontal by an asbestos insulated clamp at one end. The other end of the rod was heated intensely by a propane torch. The heated end began to glow with bright orange color and the torch was removed. The glow moved down the 95M rod in air at an average of 2.75 cm/minute leaving a cool, grey, wrinkled rod behind it. The rod gained 4.5% in weight during the glowing. This compares with 25.4% weight gain for complete oxidation as measured after prolonged heating. The rod increased in length by 47% during the heating. The glow would not propagate more than one cm down a similar rod of 75M2 misch metal.

The expansion of misch metal during oxidation can be seen in Figure 8. A rod of 1/16 inch diameter was heated to 650° C in air in a thermal analysis ceramic cup. The cinder-like residue was more than twice the bulk volume of the metal rod.

V. CNERATION OF PYROPHORIC FRAGMENTS

The drop weight impact apparatus that was used to generate pyrophoric sparks and fragments from the glowing samples is shown in Figure 9. The dimensions of the apparatus are shown in Figure 10. The recovered fragments varied in shape and were generally less than 0.1 gram in weight. The sparks were directed at a 45° inclined stainless steel plate which led to an enclosed tray where terminal ballistics experiments were carried out to study fragment properties and ignition of combustible materials. Inese experiments will be described in later reports.

The order of magnitude of kinetic energy necessary to initiate sparking in the glowing pellets was determined from different drop heights. Photographs of sparks from 10, 20, 30 and 39.1 cm drops are shown in Figure 11.

ing. PELLET AFTER OXIDATION Figure 8 - Misch Metal Expansion MISCH METAL PELLET ٠ a because a Same (Second D TA 29



Figure 9 - Drop Weight Impact Apparatus





C. 30 cm DROP (0.498 newton m.)

and the second second

D. 39.1 cm DK-2P (0.647 newton m.)

Figure 11- Effect of Impact on Spark Formation

These heights correspond to 0.166, 0.332, 0.50 and 0.65 newton meters with a drop weight of 169 grams. Upon falling from a height of 39.1 cm as is the case in most runs, the impact velocity is 276 cm/sec.It seems that a kinetic energy of at least 0.332 newton m is needed for extensive sparking. In some tests glowing pellets were merely dropped from 30 cm. In these tests some sparking occurred, but it was not as dramatic as those generated in the impact apparatus.

High temperatures alone did not cause sparking in the pellets, but the combination of both heat and impact in the ranges discussed here gave profuse sparks. Although either extremely high temperatures $(>1000^{\circ}C)$ or very high kinetic energy impacts alone may lead to sparking, the point to be emphasized is the presence of thresholds of temperature and impact for sparking in the sensitive laboratory conditions described here.

It was shown that an oxidizing atmosphere is necessary to the sparking process by heating a pellet of 75M2 misch metal in air at 700° C. It was glowing brightly when it was placed on the anvil of the impact apparatus which was in a covered tray filled with argon. After impact, small glowing particles dispersed from the impact apparatus, but they were not sparking fragments. They were not bright and cascading. Thus, the misch metal was sufficiently softened at 700° C to easily breakup upon impact. The hot fragments did not "explode" or spark in the inert argon atmosphere.

High speed motion pictures of free flying fragments after impact show an eroding type of breakup of the larger pieces during flight. The fragments had velocities between 1,000 and 2,000 cm/sec.

VI. CONCLUSIONS

A search of the chemical and physical properties of metals revealed that a combination of two properties - the free energy of formation of the metal oxide per oxygen atom and the ratio of metal oxide to metal specific volume - furnished a distinction between known pyrophoric and non-pyrophoric metals. Using these properties, fourteen elements were predicted to possess pyrophoric sparking capability. They have <u>both</u> high reactivity and high oxide volume ratio.

A simple test was developed using heat and impact to experimentally test materials for pyrophoricity. When pyrophoric metals were heated above their Lower Glow Temperature they began to glow brightly and, upon impact with a small standard weight, gave a profuse shower of sparks. The order of Lower Glow Temperature found was (misch metal and cerium) < zirconium < titanium.

Pyrophoric and non-pyrophoric metals were tested as above. The two known pyrophoric metals, cerium and zirconium, sparked vigorously. The two potential pyrophoric metals (according to the above empirical criteria), aluminum and titanium, were tested and while the titanium sparked, the aluminum did not. Three non-pyrophoric metals (iron, copper, and antimony) did not spark.

From these exploratory results it appears that the high reactivity and high oxide expansion criteria are necessary for a metal to be pyrophoric, but are not sufficiently limiting. Additional criteria may be needed to further reduce the field of potential pyrophoric metals.

The thermo-impact bench test can be used to screen new metals and alloys for pyrophoric behavior. It is planned to further study the initiation of pyrophoric behavior and to utilize the sparks generated from the impact as ignition sources in controlled experiments.

REFERENCES

- I. Hartmann, J. Nagy, and M. Jacobson, "Explosive Characteristics of Titanium, Zirconium, Thorium, Uranium and Their Hydrides," BMRI 4835, (1951).
- 2. B. Kopelman and V. B. Compton, Metal Progress, 63(2), 77 (1953).
- 3. C. R. Schmitt, J. Fire and Flammability, 2, 157 (1971).

なからないというないのでは、

- 4. "Handbook of Chemistry and Physics," The Chemical Rubber Co., Cleveland, Ohio, 53rd Edition (1972).
- 5. U. Kask, "Chemistry: Structure and Changes of Matter," Barnes and Noble, Inc., New York, 1969.
- 6. H. Ellern, "Military and Civilian Pyrotechnics," Chemical Publishing Co., Inc., New York, 1968.
- 7. G. E. Zima, "Pyrophoricity of Uranium in Reactor Environments," AECHW-62442 (1960).
- J. R. Gibson and J. D. Weber, "Handbook of Selected Properties of Air - and Water-Reactive Materials," U.S. Naval Ammunition Depot, Crane, Indiana, RDTR No. 144, AD 699422, (1969).
- 9. R. B. Smith, <u>Nucleonics</u>, <u>14</u> (12) 28 (1956).
- 10. I. Hartman, J. Nagy and H. Brown, "Inflammability and Explosibility of Metal Powders," BMRI 3722 (1943).
- W. J. Moore, "Physical Chemistry," 2nd Edition, p 499, Prentice-Hall, Inc, Englewood Cliffs, N.J., 1955.